


Al: ICG Knott Co LLC (860-5271) -- 82715

o  KYG042589 (860-5267): Outfall K.P.D.E.S. #2 (32 data entries).
e KYG043345 (860-0414): Outfall #1 (35 data entries) —signature dates changed.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:
ICG Knott Co, LLC shall comply with the terms and conditions of their KPDES Permits. [KRS

224.70-110]

2 Violation Description for Subject Item AIO00000082715():
No person shall, directly or indirectly, throw, drain, run or otherwise discharge into any of the
waters of the Commonwealth, or cause, permit or suffer to be thrown, drained, run or otherwise
discharged into such waters any pollutant, or any substance that shall cause or contribute to the
pollution of the waters of the Commonwealth in contravention of the standards adopted by the
cabinet or in contravention of any of the rules, regulations, permits, or orders of the cabinet or in
contravention of any of the provisions of this chapter. [KRS 224.70-110]

Description of Non Compliance:

ICG Knott County violated 401 KAR 5:065, Section 2(1), which cites to 40 CFR 122.41(k)(2).
The KDEP requested copies of laboratory analysis bench sheets (LABSs) for KPDES Permit No.
KYG045805 (DNR Permit No. 860-5271) from S&S Water Analysis, Inc. S&S is ICG Knott
County’s contract laboratory. S&S submitted copies of LABSs for 1 and 2™ Quarters 2009 twice:
the first time soon after the initial request on 10/14/2010, and the second time on 10/27/2010. The
LABSs for the 2™ Quarter 2009 showed different data between the two submittals. S & S
Monitoring submitted the second set of data without coordinating through ICG.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:
ICG Knott Co, LLC shall comply with the terms and conditions of their KPDES Permits. [KRS

224.70-110]

3 Violation Description for Subject Item AIOO0000082715():
No person shall, directly or indirectly, throw, drain, run or otherwise discharge into any of the
waters of the Commonwealth, or cause, permit or suffer to be thrown, drained, run or otherwise
discharged into such waters any pollutant, or any substance that shall cause or contribute to the
pollution of the waters of the Commonwealth in contravention of the standards adopted by the
cabinet or in contravention of any of the rules, regulations, permits, or orders of the cabinet or in
contravention of any of the provisions of this chapter. [KRS 224.70-110]

Description of Non Compliance:

ICG Knott County violated 401 KAR 5:065, Section 2(1), which cites to 40 CFR 122.41(a), by
failing to submit the required monitoring data for conductivity on the Discharge Monitoring
Reports (DMRs) for August 2009 and September 2009. Conductivity data was missing for for the
following permits and outfalls:

o KYG043631 (860-5269): Outfall #1
o  KYG042754 (860-5268): Outfalls #1 and MD-2
¢  KYG045360 (860-5279): Outfall 01
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AL ICG Knott Co LLC (860-5271) -- 82715

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:
ICG Knott Co, LLC shall comply with the terms and conditions of their KPDES Permits. [KRS
224.70-110]

4 Violation Description for Subject Item AIO00000082715():
No person shall, directly or indirectly, throw, drain, run or otherwise discharge into any of the
waters of the Commonwealth, or cause, permit or suffer to be thrown, drained, run or otherwise
discharged into such waters any pollutant, or any substance that shall cause or contribute to the
pollution of the waters of the Commonwealth in contravention of the standards adopted by the
cabinet or in contravention of any of the rules, regulations, permits, or orders of the cabinet or in
contravention of any of the provisions of this chapter. [KRS 224.70-110]

Description of Non Compliance:

ICG Knott County violated 401 KAR 5:065, Section 2(1), which cites to 40 CFR 122.41(1)(4)(i),
by failing to accurately report monitoring results on Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs). A
comparison of laboratory analysis bench sheets (LABSs) and the DMRs found discrepancies
between data reported on the LABSs and the data entered on the DMRs. In all instances, a
violation was reported on the DMR when the LABS indicated that analysis result was in
compliance. Below are the specific findings:

e KY0094285, Outfall 001 (DNR Pond 1): The LABS reported Total Recoverable
Manganese (TRMn) as 1.27 mg/L daily maximum. The DMR reported TRMn as 117
mg/L daily maximum.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:
ICG Knott Co, LLC shall comply with the terms and conditions of their KPDES Permits. [KRS
224.70-110]

5 Violation Description for Subject Item AIOO0000082715():
No person shall, directly or indirectly, throw, drain, run or otherwise discharge into any of the
waters of the Commonwealth, or cause, permit or suffer to be thrown, drained, run or otherwise
discharged into such waters any pollutant, or any substance that shall cause or contribute to the
pollution of the waters of the Commonwealth in contravention of the standards adopted by the
cabinet or in contravention of any of the rules, regulations, permits, or orders of the cabinet or in
contravention of any of the provisions of this chapter. [KRS 224.70-110]

Description of Non Compliance:
ICG Knott County violated 401 KAR 5:065, Section 2(1), which cites to 40 CFR 122.41(a), by
failing to submit Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs) for the following permits and outfalls:

o KYG045265: Outfall SSB, SSE: 2™ Quarter (April through June) 2009.
e KYG044728: Outfall OOE, OOB: 4™ Quarter (October through December) 2009.

o KYG046395: Outfall (all): All 4 Quarters (January through December) 2008,
2009.

e KYG046374: Outfall (all): All 4 Quarters (January through December) 2008,
2009.

e KYG046374 Outfall (all): 1% & 2™ Quarters (January through June)
2010.

Page 3



Al: ICG Knott Co LLC (860-5271) -- 82715

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:
ICG Knott Co, LLC shall comply with the terms and conditions of their KPDES Permits. [KRS
224.70-110]

6 Violation Description for Subject Item AIOO0000082715():
No person shall, directly or indirectly, throw, drain, run or otherwise discharge into any of the
waters of the Commonwealth, or cause, permit or suffer to be thrown, drained, run or otherwise
discharged into such waters any pollutant, or any substance that shall cause or contribute to the
pollution of the waters of the Commonwealth in contravention of the standards adopted by the
cabinet or in contravention of any of the rules, regulations, permits, or orders of the cabinet or in
contravention of any of the provisions of this chapter. [KRS 224.70-110]

Description of Non Compliance:

ICG Knott County violated 401 KAR 5:065, Section 2(1), which cites to 40 CFR 122.41(a), by
failing to submit all data as required for Monitoring and Reporting, as required by the KPDES Coal
General Permit.

A total of two (2) samples shall be collected (if discharge occurs) each calendar month during a
period of discharge resulting from a precipitation or pumpage event for all active mining areas and
post mining underground drainage. Should either or both discharges be controlled discharges, then
the requirement of Section B shall apply.

If only one (1) discharge occurs during the calendar month, then the permittee must provide
appropriate documentation.

Below are the specific violations found:

o KYG045265: Outfall 002:  Only 1 sample was reported for January, February and
March of 2010. Appropriate documentation was not attached to the DMRs.

o KYG044728: Outfall001: Only 1 sample was reported for December of 2009.
Appropriate documentation was not attached to the DMRs.

e KYG044982: Outfall #1: Only 1 sample was reported for June 2008; October 2008;
November 2009; February 2010. NO samples were reported for October 2009.
Appropriate documentation was not attached to the DMRs.

e KYG041041: Outfall030: Only 1 sample was reported for October 2008.
Appropriate documentation was not attached to the DMRs.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:
ICG Knott Co, LLC shall comply with the terms and conditions of their KPDES Permits. [KRS
224.70-110]

*%* NOTE ** Attached is a complete list of ICG Hazard Permits that were reviewed.

Violations of the above cited statute(s) and/or regulation(s) are subject to a civil penalty per day per violation.
Violations carry civil penalties of up to $25,000 per day per violation depending on the statutes/regulations
violated. In addition; violations may be concurrently enjoined. Compliance with remedial measures and their
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AI: ICG Knott Co LLC (860-5271) -- 82715

deadlines does not provide exemption from liability for violations during the period of remediation, nor prevent
additional remedial measures from being required.
If you have questions or need further information, write or call the undersigned:

Department for Environmental Protection
Division of Enforcement
300 Fair Oaks Lane
Frankfort, KY 40601
502-564-2150 extension 266 (8:00 AM — 4:30 PM)
Ms. Lori Conway, Enforcement Specialist

A & by

Issued By:
Ms. Lori E. Conway
Environmental Enforcement Specialist
Compliance and Operations Branch
Date: November 29, 2010

Issued By: /

Mark J. Cleland, M.P.A., RE.H.S.
Environmental Control Manager
Compliance and Operations Branch
Date: November 29, 2010

How Delivered: Hand Delivered
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Al: ICG Knott Co LLC (860-5271) -- 82715

11/23/2010
1CG Knott Co, LLC
Permits Reviewed
DNR # Old or New KPDES # Al#
DNR #
1 860-0414 KYG043345 13731
2 860-0441 KYG045265 82705
3 860-5267 KYG042589 13300
4 860-5268 KYG042754 82695
5 860-5269 KYG043631 13922
6 860-5270 KYG044259 14329
7 860-5271 KYG045805 82715
860-5277 KYG046392 105044
9 860-5279 KYG045360 82720
10 860-5296 KYG044728 82703
11 860-5297 KYG044982 82704
12 860-5298 KYG045973 82718
13 860-5312 KYG046395 105052
14 860-5324 KYG046374 104773
15 860-8012 KY0094285 2528
16 860-8014 KYG041041 12691
17 860-9011 KYG045000 14844
* Not theirs
18 898-8147 anymore
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LEONARD K. PETERS
SECRETARY

STEVEN L. BESHEAR
GOVERNOR

ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENT CABINET
DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

. Division of Water
200 Fair Oaks Lane, 4™ Floor
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

www.ky.gov
November 29, 2010
Certified No. 7007 0710 0004 2989 2530
Return Receipt Requested
ICG East Kentucky, LLC

1021 Tori Drive
Hazard, Kentucky 41701

Re:  Notice of Violation
AIID: 82942
Al Name: ICG East KY LLC (880-0179)
Activity ID: ENV20100001
Permit No. KYG046183
Martin County, Kentucky

Dear Sir:
The Kentucky Department for Environmental Protection (DEP) has issued the enclosed Notice of
Violation for violations discovered at your facility. Please review this Notice of Violation carefully to

ensure that all remedial measures are completed by the specified deadlines.

Your cooperation and attention to this matter is appreciated. If you have any questions, please
contact me at 502-564-3410.

Sincerely,

s £ L

Mr. Thomas B. Gabbard, Manager
Compliance & Technical Assistance Branch
Division of Water

Enclosure
cc: Hazard Regional Office
Mr. Don Gibson

Ketuckis™
¥entuickvl InhridledSnirit com pfiy enunrfy

e T Erny An Fanal Onnartunitvy Emnlover M/FM



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENT CABINET
DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Division of Water

NOTICE OF VIOLATION

To: ICG East Kentucky, LLC
1021 Tori Drive
Hazard, Kentucky 41701

Al Name: ICG East KY LLC (880-0179) AIID: 82942 Activity ID: ENV20100001
County: Martin

Enforcement Case ID:

Date(s) Violation(s) Observed: 10/15/2010

This is to advise that you are in violation of the provisions cited below:

1 Violation Description for Subject Item AI000000082942():
The permittee shall retain records of all monitoring information, including all calibration and
maintenance records and all original strip chart recordings for continuous monitoring
instrumentation, copies of all reports required by this permit, and records of all data used to
complete the application for this permit, for a period of at least three (3) years from the date of the
sample, measurement, report, or application. This period may be extended by request of the
cabinet at any time. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Description of Non Compliance:

The facility has failed to maintain required records. The specific areas of deficiency are as follows:
Samples are taken from the permitted outfalls by permittee's contract lab, S & S Water
Monitoring, personnel. Although S & S does have a "Sample Custody Sheet" they do not appear to
be used consistently, however the samples are identified by a sample tag that includes the date of
the sample, location, analysis to be run and preservative, where applicable. The sample tag has a
place for the name of the sampler, but the completed tags we observed did not include the name of
the sampler or the time the sample was collected. The sample tags are discarded along with the
sample bottle after testing is completed. The "Sample Custody Sheet" does not record when the
sample was collected; the name(s) of those who received the sample(s) in the lab, or the time and
date the sample was received in the lab. A "Pond Analysis Lab Sheet" apparently used by S&S
Water Monitoring as a bench sheet, identifies the date the sample was taken, the name and permit
number of the mining facility, the sample location (outfall) and the sample results for both sample
dates for each outfall, but does not contain the name of the sampler taking the field readings or the
name of the analyst(s). The sheet does not include the date and time when the analysis was
performed or any of the documentation (calculations) required to verify the sample results. The
"Pond Analysis Lab Sheet" is essentially a working or draft copy of the DMR form. Neither the
Pond Analysis Lab Sheets nor lab log books identify the method used for the analysis. DOW
found no documentation of calibration, maintenance records, the use of duplicates of spikes or
other QC measures.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:

The permittee shall comply with all recordkeeping requirements specified in the permit. Proper
sampling procedures shall be followed by verifying the proper chains of custody, laboratory bench
sheets, laboratory logs and other pertinent Quality Assurance and Quality Control protocols are



followed for the sampling and analysis of the parameters required for the KPDES self-monitoring
program. By December 15, 2010, the permittee shall submit a corrective action plan to the
undersigned that the permittee complies with all requirements of its permit and will maintain
adequate records and supporting documentation for the time period required by the KPDES and
DNR Permits. A copy of the lab Standard Operating Procedures plan (SOP), proper chains of
custody forms, bench sheets and the associated analytical data for sampling and analysis
performed for the month of October 2010 shall be submitted with the corrective action plan. [401
KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Violation Description for Subject Item AI000000082942():
Monitoring results shall be reported at the intervals specified in the permit. [401 KAR 5:065

Section 2(1)]

Description of Non Compliance:

The facility has failed to submit monitoring results at intervals specified in the permit and to
provide an authorized signature on the Discharge Monitoring Report. The permittee's contract lab
was collecting the samples in the field, doing both the field and laboratory analysis and
completing and signing the DMRs. The contract lab has also been submitting the DMRs to the
Department of Natural Resources. It is critical that the permittee be fully aware of the data
contained on the DMRs, and the supporting lab data that is used in preparing the DMRs.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:

The permittee must report monitoring results at the intervals specified in the permit. The DMRs
are to be signed by a responsible corporate officer for the permittee or by a duly authorized
representative of the permittee. The permittee must ensure the data submitted on the Discharge
Monitoring Report (DMR) is accurate. If the permittee chooses a duly authorized representative
to sign the DMRs, the permittee shall immediately submit a letter of authorization, including
proper documentation, to EECPPC/DEP/DOW. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Violation Description for Subject Item AI000000082942():

Proper Operation and Maintenance. The permittee shall at all times properly operate and maintain
all facilities and systems of treatment and control and related appurtenances which are installed or
used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the conditions of this permit. Proper operation
and maintenance also includes adequate laboratory controls, and appropriate quality assurance
procedures. This provision requires the operation of back-up or auxiliary facilities or similar
systems which are installed by a permittee only when the operation is necessary to achieve
compliance with the conditions of the permit. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Description of Non Compliance:

Laboratory controls are deficient due to the lack of adequate quality assurance and quality control
(QA/QC) procedures. Although most of the required sampling parameters appear to be performed
by approved methodologies, there is a lack of QA/QC because there is no back-up data to support
the information contained on the DMRs. Deficiencies include no chains of custody, inadequate
bench sheets/records, no lab equipment maintenance logs, reagent logs, calibration logs, and no
lab SOP manual, etc. It appears the contract lab is using an unapproved methodology (Hach DR
890 Colorimeter) for TSS analysis. The facility DMRs continually and consistently report the
Acidity concentration for all discharges, from all ponds, for all DMRs to be 0 mg/1 for 2008, 2009
and 2010. If the value resulting is below the detection limit, the correct way of reporting is to
enter BDL (Below Detection Limit) into the appropriate space for Acidity on the DMR form.
These deficiencies are addressed in greater detail in the attached lab inspection report.



The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:

The permittee must, at all times, properly operate & maintain the facility. Proper operation and
maintenance includes adequate laboratory controls and appropriate quality assurance procedures.
The permittee shall verify their contract laboratory has developed and is implementing a Standard
Operating Procedures (SOP) plan and is using approved methodologies for all analysis. By
December 15, 2010, the permittee shall submit a corrective action plan to the undersigned that the
permittee complies with all requirements of its permit and will maintain adequate records and
supporting documentation for the time period required by the KPDES and DNR permits. The
permittee shall prepare and submit with the corrective action plan a copy of a chain of custody
form, bench sheet, and maintenance, reagent, calibration and precipitation logs to be used, and
Standard Operating Procedures to be used. Each document submitted shall include the following
information, as appropriate:

The date, exact place, and time of sampling or measurements;

The individual(s) who performed the sampling or measurements;

The date(s) analyses were performed;

The individual(s) who performed the analyses;

The analytical techniques or methods used; and

The results of such analyses.

These documents may include, and are not limited to, chains-of-custody, bench sheets,
maintenance, reagent, calibration, and precipitation logs, and standard operating procedures.
-J401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Violation Description for Subject Item A1000000082942():

Duty to comply. Monitoring shall be conducted according to test procedures approved under 40
CFR Part 136, unless another method is required under 40 CFR subchapters N and O. [401 KAR
5:065 Section 2(1)]

Description of Non Compliance:

The facility has failed to monitor permit parameters utilizing approved test procedures. DOW did
observe S&S used the proper sample bottles and preservatives. There was no log of the
preservatives used and/or the Certificates of Analysis that should come with the preservatives.
DOW did observe that some samples delivered to the lab on 10/14/2010 (client coal company
unknown) were contained in a plastic shopping bag, with no means of refrigeration. The samples
were placed immediately into the refrigerator at the lab. The refrigerator at the lab did not contain
a thermometer, and there was no temperature log for the refrigerator. DOW has provided the lab
with a sample copy of a temperature log for the refrigerator. Deficiencies related to the chains of
custody and lab bench/record sheets were such that it was not possible to determine if samples
were being analyzed within the required holding times. It appeared the lab used an unapproved
test methodology to analyze for Total Suspended Solids. The lab sometimes uses the unapproved
Hach test kit method instead of the gravimetric method approved through Std. Methods. The
deficiencies with the laboratory are discussed in greater detail in the attached Laboratory
Performance Audit Report.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:

The permittee must monitor parameters in accordance with procedures approved under 40 CFR
Part 136. Monitoring must be conducted according to test procedures approved under 40 CFR
Part 136 unless another method is required under 40 CFR subchapters N or O. The permittee
shall submit a written notification to the undersigned that the permittee complies with all
requirements of its permit. Along with the Corrective Action Plan (CAP), the permittee shall also
provide a copy of the Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) plan utilized by their lab facility along
with an outline of the QA/QC protocols being implemented by the laboratory. The CAP and



supporting documents shall be submitted by December 15, 2010. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Violations of the above cited statute(s) and/or regulation(s) are subject to a civil penalty per day per
violation. Violations carry civil penalties of up to $25,000 per day per violation depending on the
statutes/regulations violated. In addition, violations may be concurrently enjoined. Compliance with
remedial measures and their deadlines does not provide exemption from liability for violations during
the period of remediation, nor prevent additional remedial measures from being required.

If you have questions or need further information, write or call the undersigned:

Division of Water
Compliance & Technical Assistance Branch
200 Fair Oaks Lane, 4™ Floor
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601
502-564-3410 (8:00 AM - 4:30 PM)
Mr. Thomas B. Gabbard, Environmental Control Manager

s £ L

Mr. Thomas B. Gabbard, Environmental Control Manager
Date: November 29, 2010

Issued By:

How Delivered: Certified Mail Certified/Registered # 7007 0710 0004 2989 2530



LEONARD K. PETERS

TEVEN L. BE
S L. BESHEAR SECRETARY

(GOVERNOR

ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENT CABINET
DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Division of Water
200 Fair Oaks Lane, 4" Floor
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601

www.ky.gov
November 29, 2010
Certified No. 7007 07>10 0004 2989 2530
Return Receipt Requested
ICG East Kentucky, LLC

1021 Tori Drive
Hazard, Kentucky 41701

Re:  Notice of Violation
ALID: 13736
Al Name: ICG East KY LLC (898-0735)
Activity ID: ENV20100001
Permit No. KYG045173
Pike County, Kentucky

Dear Sir:

The Kentucky Department for Environmental Protection (DEP) has issued the enclosed Notice of
Violation for violations discovered at your facility. Please review this Notice of Violation carefully to
ensure that all remedial measures are completed by the specified deadlines.

Your cooperation and attention to this matter is appreciated. If you have any questions, please
contact me at 502-564-3410.

Sincerely,

s £ LU

Mr. Thomas B. Gabbard, Manager
Compliance & Technical Assistance Branch
Division of Water

Enclosure
cc: Hazard Regional Office
Mr. Don Gibson

Kentuckin ™ -



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENT CABINET
DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Division of Water

NOTICE OF VIOLATION

To: ICG East Kentucky, LLC
1021 Tori Drive
Hazard, Kentucky 41701

Al Name: ICG East KY LLC (898-0735) AIID: 13736 Activity ID: ENV20100001
County: Pike

Enforcement Case ID:

Date(s) Violation(s) Observed: 10/15/2010

This is to advise that you are in violation of the provisions cited below:

1 Violation Description for Subject Item AIO00000013736():
The permittee shall retain records of all monitoring information, including all calibration and
maintenance records and all original strip chart recordings for continuous monitoring
instrumentation, copies of all reports required by this permit, and records of all data used to
complete the application for this permit, for a period of at least three (3) years from the date of the
sample, measurement, report, or application. This period may be extended by request of the
cabinet at any time. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Description of Non Compliance:

The facility has failed to maintain required records. The specific areas of deficiency are as follows:
Samples are taken from the permitted outfalls by permittee's contract lab, S & S Water
Monitoring, personnel. Although S & S does have a "Sample Custody Sheet" they do not appear to
be used consistently, however the samples are identified by a sample tag that includes the date of
the sample, location, analysis to be run and preservative, where applicable. The sample tag has a
place for the name of the sampler, but the completed tags we observed did not include the name of
the sampler or the time the sample was collected. The sample tags are discarded along with the
sample bottle after testing is completed. The "Sample Custody Sheet" does not record when the
sample was collected; the name(s) of those who received the sample(s) in the lab, or the time and
date the sample was received in the lab. A "Pond Analysis Lab Sheet" apparently used by S&S
Water Monitoring as a bench sheet, identifies the date the sample was taken, the name and permit
number of the mining facility, the sample location (outfall) and the sample results for both sample
dates for each outfall, but does not contain the name of the sampler taking the field readings or the
name of the analyst(s). The sheet does not include the date and time when the analysis was
performed or any of the documentation (calculations) required to verify the sample results. The
"Pond Analysis Lab Sheet" is essentially a working or draft copy of the DMR form. Neither the
Pond Analysis Lab Sheets nor lab log books identify the method used for the analysis. DOW
found no documentation of calibration, maintenance records, the use of duplicates of spikes or
other QC measures.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:

The permittee shall comply with all recordkeeping requirements specified in the permit. Proper
sampling procedures shall be followed by verifying the proper chains of custody, laboratory bench
sheets, laboratory logs and other pertinent Quality Assurance and Quality Control protocols are



followed for the sampling and analysis of the parameters required for the KPDES self-monitoring
program. By December 15, 2010, the permittee shall submit a corrective action plan to the
undersigned that the permittee complies with all requirements of its permit and will maintain
adequate records and supporting documentation for the time period required by the KPDES and
DNR Permits. A copy of the lab Standard Operating Procedures plan (SOP), proper chains of
custody forms, bench sheets and the associated analytical data for sampling and analysis
performed for the month of October 2010 shall be submitted with the corrective action plan. [401

KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Violation Description for Subject Item AI000000013736():
Monitoring results shall be reported at the intervals specified in the permit. [401 KAR 5:065

Section 2(1)}

Description of Non Compliance:

The facility has failed to submit monitoring results at intervals specified in the permit and to
provide an authorized signature on the Discharge Monitoring Report. The permittee's contract lab .
was collecting the samples in the field, doing both the field and laboratory analysis and
completing and signing the DMRs. The contract lab has also been submitting the DMRs to the
Department of Natural Resources. It is critical that the permittee be fully aware of the data
contained on the DMRs, and the supporting lab data that is used in preparing the DMRs.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:

The permittee must report monitoring results at the intervals specified in the permit. The DMRs
are to be signed by a responsible corporate officer for the permittee or by a duly authorized
representative of the permittee. The permittee must ensure the data submitted on the Discharge
Monitoring Report (DMR) is accurate. If the permittee chooses a duly authorized representative
to sign the DMRs, the permittee shall immediately submit a letter of authorization, including
proper documentation, to EECPPC/DEP/DOW. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Violation Description for Subject Item AI000000013736():

Proper Operation and Maintenance. The permittee shall at all times properly operate and maintain
all facilities and systems of treatment and control and related appurtenances which are installed or
used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the conditions of this permit. Proper operation
and maintenance also includes adequate laboratory controls, and appropriate quality assurance
procedures. This provision requires the operation of back-up or auxiliary facilities or similar
systems which are installed by a permittee only when the operation is necessary to achieve
compliance with the conditions of the permit. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Description of Non Compliance:

Laboratory controls are deficient due to the lack of adequate quality assurance and quality control
(QA/QC) procedures. Although most of the required sampling parameters appear to be performed
by approved methodologies, there is a lack of QA/QC because there is no back-up data to support
the information contained on the DMRs. Deficiencies include no chains of custody, inadequate
bench sheets/records, no lab equipment maintenance logs, reagent logs, calibration logs, and no
lab SOP manual, etc. It appears the contract lab is using an unapproved methodology (Hach DR
890 Colorimeter) for TSS analysis. The facility DMRs continually and consistently report the
Acidity concentration for all discharges, from all ponds, for all DMRs to be 0 mg/1 for 2008, 2009
and 2010. If the value resulting is below the detection limit, the correct way of reporting is to
enter BDL (Below Detection Limit) into the appropriate space for Acidity on the DMR form.
These deficiencies are addressed in greater detail in the attached lab inspection report.



The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:

The permittee must, at all times, properly operate & maintain the facility. Proper operation and
maintenance includes adequate laboratory controls and appropriate quality assurance procedures.
The permittee shall verify their contract laboratory has developed and is implementing a Standard
Operating Procedures (SOP) plan and is using approved methodologies for all analysis. By
December 15, 2010, the permittee shall submit a corrective action plan to the undersigned that the
permittee complies with all requirements of its permit and will maintain adequate records and
supporting documentation for the time period required by the KPDES and DNR permits. The
permittee shall prepare and submit with the corrective action plan a copy of a chain of custody
form, bench sheet, and maintenance, reagent, calibration and precipitation logs to be used, and
Standard Operating Procedures to be used. Each document submitted shall include the following
information, as appropriate:

The date, exact place, and time of sampling or measurements;

The individual(s) who performed the sampling or measurements;

The date(s) analyses were performed,

The individual(s) who performed the analyses;

The analytical techniques or methods used; and

The results of such analyses.

These documents may include, and are not limited to, chains-of-custody, bench sheets,
maintenance, reagent, calibration, and precipitation logs, and standard operating procedures.
[401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Violation Description for Subject Item AIQ00000013736():
Duty to comply. Monitoring shall be conducted according to test procedures approved under 40
CFR Part 136, unless another method is required under 40 CFR subchapters N and O. [401 KAR

5:065 Section 2(1)]

Description of Non Compliance:

The facility has failed to monitor permit parameters utilizing approved test procedures. DOW did
observe S&S used the proper sample bottles and preservatives. There was no log of the
preservatives used and/or the Certificates of Analysis that should come with the preservatives.
DOW did observe that some samples delivered to the lab on 10/14/2010 (client coal company
unknown) were contained in a plastic shopping bag, with no means of refrigeration. The samples
were placed immediately into the refrigerator at the lab. The refrigerator at the lab did not contain
a thermometer, and there was no temperature log for the refrigerator. DOW has provided the lab
with a sample copy of a temperature log for the refrigerator. Deficiencies related to the chains of
custody and lab bench/record sheets were such that it was not possible to determine if samples
were being analyzed within the required holding times. It appeared the lab used an unapproved
test methodology to analyze for Total Suspended Solids. The lab sometimes uses the unapproved
Hach test kit method instead of the gravimetric method approved through Std. Methods. The
deficiencies with the laboratory are discussed in greater detail in the attached Laboratory
Performance Audit Report.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:

The permittee must monitor parameters in accordance with procedures approved under 40 CFR
Part 136. Monitoring must be conducted according to test procedures approved under 40 CFR
Part 136 unless another method is required under 40 CFR subchapters N or O. The permittee
shall submit a written notification to the undersigned that the permittee complies with all
requirements of its permit. Along with the Corrective Action Plan (CAP), the permittee shall also
provide a copy of the Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) plan utilized by their lab facility along
with an outline of the QA/QC protocols being implemented by the laboratory. The CAP and



supporting documents shall be submitted by December 15, 2010. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(D))

Violations of the above cited statute(s) and/or regulation(s) are subject to a civil penalty per day per
violation. Violations carry civil penalties of up to $25,000 per day per violation depending on the
statutes/regulations violated. In addition, violations may be concurrently enjoined. Compliance with
remedial measures and their deadlines does not provide exemption from liability for violations during
the period of remediation, nor prevent additional remedial measures from being required.

If you have questions or need further information, write or call the undersigned:

Division of Water
Compliance & Technical Assistance Branch
200 Fair Oaks Lane, 4™ Floor
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601
502-564-3410 (8:00 AM — 4:30 PM)
Mr. Thomas B. Gabbard, Environmental Control Manager

b £ L
Issued By:

Mr. Thomas B. Gabbard, Environmental Control Manager
Date: November 29, 2010

How Delivered: Certified Mail Certified/Registered # 7007 0710 0004 2989 2530



LEONARD K. PETERS
SECRETARY

STEVEN L. BESHEAR
GOVERNOR

ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENT CABINET
DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Division of Water
200 Fair Oaks Lane, 4" Floor
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601
www.ky.gov

November 29, 2010

Certified No. 7007 0710 0004 2989 2530
Return Receipt Requested

ICG East Kentucky, LLC
1021 Tori Drive
Hazard, Kentucky 41701

Re:  Notice of Violation
Al ID: 3739
Al Name: ICG East KY LLC (898-0737)
Activity ID: ENV20100001
Permit No. KYG045336
Pike County, Kentucky

Dear Sir:
The Kentucky Department for Environmental Protection (DEP) has issued the enclosed Notice of
Violation for violations discovered at your facility. Please review this Notice of Violation carefully to

ensure that all remedial measures are completed by the specified deadlines.

Your cooperation and attention to this matter is appreciated. If you have any questions, please
contact me at 502-564-3410.

Sincerely,

Mr. Thomas B. Gabbard, Manager
Compliance & Technical Assistance Branch
Division of Water

Enclosure
cc: Hazard Regional Office
Mr. Don Gibson
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENT CABINET
DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Division of Water

NOTICE OF VIOLATION

To: ICG East Kentucky, LLC
1021 Tori Drive
Hazard, Kentucky 41701

Al Name: ICG East KY LLC (898-0737) AIID: 3739 Activity ID: ENV20100001
County: Pike

Enforcement Case ID:

Date(s) Violation(s) Observed: 10/15/2010

This is to advise that you are in violation of the provisions cited below:

1 Violation Description for Subject Item AI00000003739():
The permittee shall retain records of all monitoring information, including all calibration and
maintenance records and all original strip chart recordings for continuous monitoring
instrumentation, copies of all reports required by this permit, and records of all data used to
complete the application for this permit, for a period of at least three (3) years from the date of the
sample, measurement, report, or application. This period may be extended by request of the
cabinet at any time. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Description of Non Compliance:

The facility has failed to maintain required records. The specific areas of deficiency are as follows:
Samples are taken from the permitted outfalls by permittee's contract lab, S & S Water
Monitoring, personnel. Although S & S does have a "Sample Custody Sheet" they do not appear to
be used consistently, however the samples are identified by a sample tag that includes the date of
the sample, location, analysis to be run and preservative, where applicable. The sample tag has a
place for the name of the sampler, but the completed tags we observed did not include the name of
the sampler or the time the sample was collected. The sample tags are discarded along with the
sample bottle after testing is completed. The "Sample Custody Sheet" does not record when the
sample was collected; the name(s) of those who received the sample(s) in the lab, or the time and
date the sample was received in the lab. A "Pond Analysis Lab Sheet" apparently used by S&S
Water Monitoring as a bench sheet, identifies the date the sample was taken, the name and permit
number of the mining facility, the sample location (outfall) and the sample results for both sample
dates for each outfall, but does not contain the name of the sampler taking the field readings or the
name of the analyst(s). The sheet does not include the date and time when the analysis was
performed or any of the documentation (calculations) required to verify the sample results. The
"Pond Analysis Lab Sheet" is essentially a working or draft copy of the DMR form. Neither the
Pond Analysis Lab Sheets nor lab log books identify the method used for the analysis. DOW
found no documentation of calibration, maintenance records, the use of duplicates of spikes or
other QC measures.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:

The permittee shall comply with all recordkeeping requirements specified in the permit. Proper
sampling procedures shall be followed by verifying the proper chains of custody, laboratory bench
sheets, laboratory logs and other pertinent Quality Assurance and Quality Control protocols are



followed for the sampling and analysis of the parameters required for the KPDES self-monitoring
program. By December 15, 2010, the permittee shall submit a corrective action plan to the
undersigned that the permittee complies with all requirements of its permit and will maintain
adequate records and supporting documentation for the time period required by the KPDES and
DNR Permits. A copy of the lab Standard Operating Procedures plan (SOP), proper chains of
custody forms, bench sheets and the associated analytical data for sampling and analysis
performed for the month of October 2010 shall be submitted with the corrective action plan. [401

KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Violation Description for Subject Item AI00000003739():
Monitoring results shall be reported at the intervals specified in the permit. [401 KAR 5:065

Section 2(1)]

Description of Non Compliance:

The facility has failed to submit monitoring results at intervals specified in the permit and to
provide an authorized signature on the Discharge Monitoring Report. The permittee's contract lab
was collecting the samples in the field, doing both the field and laboratory analysis and
completing and signing the DMRs. The contract lab has also been submitting the DMRs to the
Department of Natural Resources. It is critical that the permittee be fully aware of the data
contained on the DMRs, and the supporting lab data that is used in preparing the DMRs.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:

The permittee must report monitoring results at the intervals specified in the permit. The DMRs
are to be signed by a responsible corporate officer for the permittee or by a duly authorized
representative of the permittee. The permittee must ensure the data submitted on the Discharge
Monitoring Report (DMR) is accurate. If the permittee chooses a duly authorized representative
to sign the DMRs, the permittee shall immediately submit a letter of authorization, including
proper documentation, to EECPPC/DEP/DOW. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Violation Description for Subject Item AI00000003739():

Proper Operation and Maintenance. The permittee shall at all times properly operate and maintain
all facilities and systems of treatment and control and related appurtenances which are installed or
used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the conditions of this permit. Proper operation
and maintenance also includes adequate laboratory controls, and appropriate quality assurance
procedures. This provision requires the operation of back-up or auxiliary facilities or similar
systems which are installed by a permittee only when the operation is necessary to achieve
compliance with the conditions of the permit. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Description of Non Compliance:

Laboratory controls are deficient due to the lack of adequate quality assurance and quality control
(QA/QC) procedures. Although most of the required sampling parameters appear to be performed
by approved methodologies, there is a lack of QA/QC because there is no back-up data to support
the information contained on the DMRs. Deficiencies include no chains of custody, inadequate
bench sheets/records, no lab equipment maintenance logs, reagent logs, calibration logs, and no
lab SOP manual, etc. It appears the contract lab is using an unapproved methodology (Hach DR
890 Colorimeter) for TSS analysis. The facility DMRs continually and consistently report the
Acidity concentration for all discharges, from all ponds, for all DMRs to be 0 mg/1 for 2008, 2009
and 2010. If the value resulting is below the detection limit, the correct way of reporting is to
enter BDL (Below Detection Limit) into the appropriate space for Acidity on the DMR form.
These deficiencies are addressed in greater detail in the attached lab inspection report.



The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:

The permittee must, at all times, properly operate & maintain the facility. Proper operation and
maintenance includes adequate laboratory controls and appropriate quality assurance procedures.
The permittee shall verify their contract laboratory has developed and is implementing a Standard
Operating Procedures (SOP) plan and is using approved methodologies for all analysis. By
December 15, 2010, the permittee shall submit a corrective action plan to the undersigned that the
permittee complies with all requirements of its permit and will maintain adequate records and
supporting documentation for the time period required by the KPDES and DNR permits. The
permittee shall prepare and submit with the corrective action plan a copy of a chain of custody
form, bench sheet, and maintenance, reagent, calibration and precipitation logs to be used, and
Standard Operating Procedures to be used. Each document submitted shall include the following
information, as appropriate:

The date, exact place, and time of sampling or measurements;

The individual(s) who performed the sampling or measurements;

The date(s) analyses were performed,

The individual(s) who performed the analyses;

The analytical techniques or methods used; and

The results of such analyses.

These documents may include, and are not limited to, chains-of-custody, bench sheets,
maintenance, reagent, calibration, and precipitation logs, and standard operating procedures.
[401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Violation Description for Subject Item AI00000003739():

Duty to comply. Monitoring shall be conducted according to test procedures approved under 40
CFR Part 136, unless another method is required under 40 CFR subchapters N and O. [401 KAR
5:065 Section 2(1)]

Description of Non Compliance:

The facility has failed to monitor permit parameters utilizing approved test procedures. DOW did
observe S&S used the proper sample bottles and preservatives. There was no log of the
preservatives used and/or the Certificates of Analysis that should come with the preservatives.
DOW did observe that some samples delivered to the lab on 10/14/2010 (client coal company
unknown) were contained in a plastic shopping bag, with no means of refrigeration. The samples
were placed immediately into the refrigerator at the lab. The refrigerator at the lab did not contain
a thermometer, and there was no temperature log for the refrigerator. DOW has provided the lab
with a sample copy of a temperature log for the refrigerator. Deficiencies related to the chains of
custody and lab bench/record sheets were such that it was not possible to determine if samples
were being analyzed within the required holding times. It appeared the lab used an unapproved
test methodology to analyze for Total Suspended Solids. The lab sometimes uses the unapproved
Hach test kit method instead of the gravimetric method approved through Std. Methods. The
deficiencies with the laboratory are discussed in greater detail in the attached Laboratory
Performance Audit Report.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:

The permittee must monitor parameters in accordance with procedures approved under 40 CFR
Part 136. Monitoring must be conducted according to test procedures approved under 40 CFR
Part 136 unless another method is required under 40 CFR subchapters N or O. The permittee
shall submit a written notification to the undersigned that the permittee complies with all
requirements of its permit. Along with the Corrective Action Plan (CAP), the permittee shall also
provide a copy of the Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) plan utilized by their lab facility along
with an outline of the QA/QC protocols being implemented by the laboratory. The CAP and



supporting documents shall be submitted by December 15, 2010. [4.01 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)}]

Violations of the above cited statute(s) and/or regulation(s) are subject to a civil penalty per day per
violation. Violations carry civil penalties of up to $25,000 per day per violation depending on the
statutes/regulations violated. In addition, violations may be concurrently enjoined. Compliance with
remedial measures and their deadlines does not provide exemption from liability for violations during
the period of remediation, nor prevent additional remedial measures from being required.

If you have questions or need further information, write or call the undersigned:

Division of Water
Compliance & Technical Assistance Branch
200 Fair Oaks Lane, 4™ Floor
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601
502-564-3410 (8:00 AM - 4:30 PM)
Mr. Thomas B. Gabbard, Environmental Control Manager

Mr. Thomas B. Gabbard, Environmental Control Manager
Date: November 29, 2010

Issued By:

How Delivered: Certified Mail Certified/Registered # 7007 0710 0004 2989 2530



~ LEONARD K. PETERS
STEVEN L. BESHEAR

SECRETARY
GOVERNOR
ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENT CABINET
DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Division of Water
200 Fair Oaks Lane, 4™ Floor
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601
www.ky.gov
November 29, 2010
Certified No. 7007 0710 0004 2989 2530
Return Receipt Requested
ICG East Kentucky, LLC
1021 Tori Drive
Hazard, Kentucky 41701
Re:  Notice of Violation

AIID: 3720

Al Name: Sidney Coal Co Inc - Sidney Prep

Plant (Multiple)

Activity ID: ENV20100001

Permit No. KYG043050

Pike County, Kentucky
Dear Sir:

The Kentucky Department for Environmental Protection (DEP) has issued the enclosed Notice of
Violation for violations discovered at your facility. Please review this Notice of Violation carefully to
ensure that all remedial measures are completed by the specified deadlines.

Your cooperation and attention to this matter is appreciated. If you have any questions, please
contact me at 502-564-3410.

Sincerely,

s £ LWL

Mr. Thomas B. Gabbard, Manager
Compliance & Technical Assistance Branch
Division of Water
Enclosure
cc: Hazard Regional Office
Mr. Don Gibson
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COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENT CABINET
DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Division of Water

NOTICE OF VIOLATION

To: ICG East Kentucky, LL.C
1021 Tori Drive
Hazard, Kentucky 41701

Al Name: Sidney Coal Co Inc - Sidney Prep Plant (Multiple) AL ID: 3720
Activity ID: ENV20100001 County: Pike

Enforcement Case ID:
Date(s) Violation(s) Observed: 10/15/2010

This is to advise that you are in violation of the provisions cited below:

1 Violation Description for Subject Item AI00000003720():
The permittee shall retain records of all monitoring information, including all calibration and
maintenance records and all original strip chart recordings for continuous monitoring
instrumentation, copies of all reports required by this permit, and records of all data used to
complete the application for this permit, for a period of at least three (3) years from the date of the
sample, measurement, report, or application. This period may be extended by request of the
cabinet at any time. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Description of Non Compliance:

The facility has failed to maintain required records. The specific areas of deficiency are as follows:
Samples are taken from the permitted outfalls by permittee's contract lab, S & S Water
Monitoring, personnel. Although S & S does have a "Sample Custody Sheet" they do not appear to
be used consistently, however the samples are identified by a sample tag that includes the date of
the sample, location, analysis to be run and preservative, where applicable. The sample tag has a
place for the name of the sampler, but the completed tags we observed did not include the name of
the sampler or the time the sample was collected. The sample tags are discarded along with the
sample bottle after testing is completed. The "Sample Custody Sheet" does not record when the
sample was collected; the name(s) of those who received the sample(s) in the lab, or the time and
date the sample was received in the lab. A "Pond Analysis Lab Sheet" apparently used by S&S
Water Monitoring as a bench sheet, identifies the date the sample was taken, the name and permit
number of the mining facility, the sample location (outfall) and the sample results for both sample
dates for each outfall, but does not contain the name of the sampler taking the field readings or the
name of the analyst(s). The sheet does not include the date and time when the analysis was
performed or any of the documentation (calculations) required to verify the sample results. The
"Pond Analysis Lab Sheet" is essentially a working or draft copy of the DMR form. Neither the
Pond Analysis Lab Sheets nor lab log books identify the method used for the analysis. DOW
found no documentation of calibration, maintenance records, the use of duplicates of spikes or

other QC measures.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:

The permittee shall comply with all recordkeeping requirements specified in the permit. Proper
sampling procedures shall be followed by verifying the proper chains of custody, laboratory bench
sheets, laboratory logs and other pertinent Quality Assurance and Quality Control protocols are



followed for the sampling and analysis of the parameters required for the KPDES self-monitoring
program. By December 15, 2010, the permittee shall submit a corrective action plan to the
undersigned that the permittee complies with all requirements of its permit and will maintain
adequate records and supporting documentation for the time period required by the KPDES and
DNR Permits. A copy of the lab Standard Operating Procedures plan (SOP), proper chains of
custody forms, bench sheets and the associated analytical data for sampling and analysis
performed for the month of October 2010 shall be submitted with the corrective action plan. [401
KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Violation Description for Subject Item ATI00000003720():
Monitoring results shall be reported at the intervals specified in the permit. [401 KAR 5:065
Section 2(1)]

Description of Non Compliance: :

The facility has failed to submit monitoring results at intervals specified in the permit and to
provide an authorized signature on the Discharge Monitoring Report. The permittee's contract lab
was collecting the samples in the field, doing both the field and laboratory analysis and
completing and signing the DMRs. The contract lab has also been submitting the DMRs to the
Department of Natural Resources. It is critical that the permittee be fully aware of the data
contained on the DMRs, and the supporting lab data that is used in preparing the DMRs.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:

The permittee must report monitoring results at the intervals specified in the permit. The DMRs
are to be signed by a responsible corporate officer for the permittee or by a duly authorized
representative of the permittee. The permittee must ensure the data submitted on the Discharge
Monitoring Report (DMR) is accurate. If the permittee chooses a duly authorized representative
to sign the DMRs, the permittee shall immediately submit a letter of authorization, including
proper documentation, to EECPPC/DEP/DOW. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Violation Description for Subject Item AI00000003720():

Proper Operation and Maintenance. The permittee shall at all times properly operate and maintain
all facilities and systems of treatment and control and related appurtenances which are installed or
used by the permittee to achieve compliance with the conditions of this permit. Proper operation
and maintenance also includes adequate laboratory controls, and appropriate quality assurance
procedures. This provision requires the operation of back-up or auxiliary facilities or similar
systems which are installed by a permittee only when the operation is necessary to achieve
compliance with the conditions of the permit. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Description of Non Compliance:

Laboratory controls are deficient due to the lack of adequate quality assurance and quality control
(QA/QC) procedures. Although most of the required sampling parameters appear to be performed
by approved methodologies, there is a lack of QA/QC because there is no back-up data to support
the information contained on the DMRs. Deficiencies include no chains of custody, inadequate
bench sheets/records, no lab equipment maintenance logs, reagent logs, calibration logs, and no
lab SOP manual, etc. It appears the contract lab is using an unapproved methodology (Hach DR
890 Colorimeter) for TSS analysis. The facility DMRs continually and consistently report the
Acidity concentration for all discharges, from all ponds, for all DMRs to be 0 mg/1 for 2008, 2009
and 2010. If the value resulting is below the detection limit, the correct way of reporting is to
enter BDL (Below Detection Limit) into the appropriate space for Acidity on the DMR form.
These deficiencies are addressed in greater detail in the attached lab inspection report.



The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:

The permittee must, at all times, properly operate & maintain the facility. Proper operation and
maintenance includes adequate laboratory controls and appropriate quality assurance procedures.
The permittee shall verify their contract laboratory has developed and is implementing a Standard
Operating Procedures (SOP) plan and is using approved methodologies for all analysis. By
December 15, 2010, the permittee shall submit a corrective action plan to the undersigned that the
permittee complies with all requirements of its permit and will maintain adequate records and
supporting documentation for the time period required by the KPDES and DNR permits. The
permittee shall prepare and submit with the corrective action plan a copy of a chain of custody
form, bench sheet, and maintenance, reagent, calibration and precipitation logs to be used, and
Standard Operating Procedures to be used. Each document submitted shall include the following
information, as appropriate:

The date, exact place, and time of sampling or measurements;

The individual(s) who performed the sampling or measurements;

The date(s) analyses were performed;

The individual(s) who performed the analyses;

The analytical techniques or methods used; and

- The results of such analyses.

These documents may include, and are not limited to, chains-of-custody, bench sheets,
maintenance, reagent, calibration, and precipitation logs, and standard operating procedures.
[401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Violation Description for Subject Item AI00000003720():
Duty to comply. Monitoring shall be conducted according to test procedures approved under 40
CFR Part 136, unless another method is required under 40 CFR subchapters N and O. [401 KAR

5:065 Section 2(1)]

Description of Non Compliance:

The facility has failed to monitor permit parameters utilizing approved test procedures. DOW did
observe S&S used the proper sample bottles and preservatives. There was no log of the
preservatives used and/or the Certificates of Analysis that should come with the preservatives.
DOW did observe that some samples delivered to the lab on 10/14/2010 (client coal company
unknown) were contained in a plastic shopping bag, with no means of refrigeration. The samples
were placed immediately into the refrigerator at the lab. The refrigerator at the lab did not contain
a thermometer, and there was no temperature log for the refrigerator. DOW has provided the lab
with a sample copy of a temperature log for the refrigerator. Deficiencies related to the chains of
custody and lab bench/record sheets were such that it was not possible to determine if samples
were being analyzed within the required holding times. It appeared the lab used an unapproved
test methodology to analyze for Total Suspended Solids. The lab sometimes uses the unapproved
Hach test kit method instead of the gravimetric method approved through Std. Methods. The
deficiencies with the laboratory are discussed in greater detail in the attached Laboratory
Performance Audit Report.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:

The permittee must monitor parameters in accordance with procedures approved under 40 CFR
Part 136. Monitoring must be conducted according to test procedures approved under 40 CFR
Part 136 unless another method is required under 40 CFR subchapters N or O. The permittee
shall submit a written notification to the undersigned that the permittee complies with all
requirements of its permit. Along with the Corrective Action Plan (CAP), the permittee shall also
provide a copy of the Standard Operating Procedure (SOP) plan utilized by their lab facility along
with an outline of the QA/QC protocols being implemented by the laboratory. The CAP and



supporting documents shall be submitted by December 15, 2010. [401 KAR 5:065 Section 2(1)]

Violations of the above cited statute(s) and/or regulation(s) are subject to a civil penalty per day per
violation. Violations carry civil penalties of up to $25,000 per day per violation depending on the
statutes/regulations violated. In addition, violations may be concurrently enjoined. Compliance with
remedial measures and their deadlines does not provide exemption from liability for violations during
the period of remediation, nor prevent additional remedial measures from being required.

If you have questions or need further information, write or call the undersigned:

Division of Water
Compliance & Technical Assistance Branch
200 Fair Oaks Lane, 4™ Floor
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601
502-564-3410 (8:00 AM - 4:30 PM)
Mr. Thomas B. Gabbard, Environmental Control Manager

b £ L

Mr. Thomas B. Gabbard, Environmental Control Manager
Date: November 29, 2010

Issued By:

How Delivered: Certified Mail Certified/Registered # 7007 0710 0004 2989 2530



LEONARD K. PETERS

STEVEN L. BESHEAR SECRETARY

GOVERNOR

ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENT CABINET
DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
DIVISION OF ENFORCEMENT
300 FAIR OAKS LANE
FRANKFORT KENTUCKY 40601
www . kentuckv.gov

November 29, 2010
Hand Delivered

ICG East KY LLC

Attn: Don Gibson o
1021 Tori Drive

Hazard, KY 41701

Re: Notice of Violation
AIID: 82942
Al Name: ICG East KY LLC
Activity ID: ENV20100002
KPDES Permits: Multiple
DSMRE Permits: Multiple

Dear Mr. Gibson:

The Kentucky Department for Environmental Protection (DEP) has issued the enclosed Notice of
Violation for violations discovered at your facilities. Please review this Notice of Violation carefully.

Your cooperation and attention to this matter is appreciated. If you have any questions, please contact me
at (502) 564-2150 extension 266.

Sincerely,
A’ & oy -

Lori E. Conway

Environmental Enforcement Specialist
Compliance and Operations Branch
Division of Enforcement

Enclosure

Kontiobio >



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
ENERGY and ENVIRONMENT CABINET
DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Division of Enforcement

NOTICE OF VIOLATION

To: ICG East KY LLC
Attn: Don Gibson

1021 Tori Drive
Hazard, KY 41701

AI Name: ICG East KY LLC (880-0179) AIID: 82942 — Multiple Activity ID: ENV20100002
County: Multiple

KPDES Permits / DSMRE Permits:

KYG046183 (880-0179), KYG045173 (898-0735), KYG045336 (898-0737)

Date(s) Violation(s) Observed: 11/25/2010
This is to advise that you are in violation of the provisions cited below:

1 Violation Description for Subject Item AIO00000082942():
No person shall, directly or indirectly, throw, drain, run or otherwise discharge into any of the
waters of the Commonwealth, or cause, permit or suffer to be thrown, drained, run or otherwise
discharged into such waters any pollutant, or any substance that shall cause or contribute to the
pollution of the waters of the Commonwealth in contravention of the standards adopted by the
cabinet or in contravention of any of the rules, regulations, permits, or orders of the cabinet or in
contravention of any of the provisions of this chapter. [KRS 224.70-110]

Description of Non Compliance:

ICG East KY LLC violated 40 CFR 122.41(k), as referenced by 401 KAR 5:065, Section 2(1), by
failing to comply with the signatory requirements for the DMR certification as specified in 40 CFR
122.22(b). The DMRs listed below had unsigned certification statements:

KYG046183 (880-0179): Outfalls 2H, SS-26, Pond-5
1st Quarter (January through March) 2010

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:
ICG East KY LLC shall comply with the terms and conditions of their KPDES permits. [KRS
224.70-110]

2 Violation Description for Subject Item AIO0O0000082942():
No person shall, directly or indirectly, throw, drain, run or otherwise discharge into any of the
waters of the Commonwealth, or cause, permit or suffer to be thrown, drained, run or otherwise
discharged into such waters any pollutant, or any substance that shall cause or contribute to the
pollution of the waters of the Commonwealth in contravention of the standards adopted by the
cabinet or in contravention of any of the rules, regulations, permits, or orders of the cabinet or in
contravention of any of the provisions of this chapter. [KRS 224.70-110)

Description of Non Compliance:

ICG East KY LLC violated 401 KAR 5:065, Section 2(1), which cites to 40 CFR 122.41(a), by
failing to submit all data as required for Monitoring and Reporting, as required by the KPDES Coal
General Permit.



Al ICG East KY LLC (880-0179) -- 82942

A total of two (2) samples shall be collected (if discharge occurs) each calendar month during a
period of discharge resulting from a precipitation or pumpage event for all active mining areas and
post mining underground drainage. Should either or both discharges be controlled discharges, then
the requirement of Section B shall apply.

If only one (1) discharge occurs during the calendar month, then the permittee must provide
appropriate documentation.

Below are the specific violations found:

KYG045173 (898-0735): Outfall 4: No Samples were reported for December 2009. Appropriate
documentation was not attached to the DMRs.

KYG046183 (880-0179): Outfall SS2: Only 1 sample was reported for January 2008. Appropriate
documentation was not attached to the DMRs.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:
ICG East KY LLC shall comply with the terms and conditions of their KPDES permits. [KRS
224.70-110]

3 Violation Description for Subject Item AIOO0000082942():
No person shall, directly or indirectly, throw, drain, run or otherwise discharge into any of the
waters of the Commonwealth, or cause, permit or suffer to be thrown, drained, run or otherwise
discharged into such waters any pollutant, or any substance that shall cause or contribute to the
pollution of the waters of the Commonwealth in contravention of the standards adopted by the
cabinet or in contravention of any of the rules, regulations, permits, or orders of the cabinet or in
contravention of any of the provisions of this chapter. [KRS 224.70-110]

Description of Non Compliance:

ICG East KY LLC violated 401 KAR 5:065, Section 2(1), which cites to 40 CFR 122.41(a), by
failing to submit the required monitoring data for conductivity on the Discharge Monitoring
Reports (DMRs) for August 2009 and September 2009. Conductivity data was missing for the
following permit and outfall:

KYG045336 (898-0737):  Outfalls P13 and P14
The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:

ICG East KY LLC shall comply with the terms and conditions of their KPDES permits. [KRS
224.70-110]

Violations of the above cited statute(s) and/or regulation(s) are subject to a civil penalty per day per violation.
Violations carry civil penalties of up to $25,000 per day per violation depending on the statutes/regulations
violated. In addition, violations may be concurrently enjoined. Compliance with remedial measures and their
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Al ICG East KY LLC (880-0179) -- 82942

deadlines does not provide exemption from liability for violations during the period of remediation, nor prevent
additional remedial measures from being required.
If you have questions or need further information, write or call the undersigned:

Department for Environmental Protection
Division of Enforcement
300 Fair Oaks Lane
Frankfort, KY 40601
502-564-2150 extension 266 (8:00 AM — 4:30 PM)
Ms. Lori Conway, Enforcement Specialist

A & by -

Issued By:
Ms. Lori E. Conway
Environmental Enforcement Specialist
Compliance and Operations Branch
Date: November 29, 2010

Issued By: /

Mark J. Cleland, M.P.A., RE.H.S.
Environmental Control Manager
Compliance and Operations Branch
Date: November 29, 2010

How Delivered: Hand Delivered
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11/23/2010
1CG East Kentucky
LLC
Permits Reviewed
DNR # Old or New KPDES # Al#
DNR #

1 880-0179 KYG046183 82943
2 898-0735 KYG045173 13736
3 898-0737 KYG045336 3739
4 898-7073 KYG045176 14990
5 898-8155 old 898-8134 | KYG043050 3720

Page 4

** No DMRs required
* No Violations



LEONARD K. PETERS
SECRETARY

STEVEN L. BESHEAR
GOVERNOR

ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENT CABINET
DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
DIVISION OF ENFORCEMENT
300 FAIR OAKS LANE
FRANKFORT KENTUCKY 40601
www.kentuckv.gov

November 29, 2010

ICG East KY LLC
Attn: Don Gibson
1021 Tori Drive
Hazard, KY 41701

Re: Notice of Violation
ALID: 14990
Al Name: 1CG East KY LLC (898-7073)
Activity ID: ENV20100001
KPDES Permit: KYG045176
DMRE Permit: 898-7073
Pike County, KY

Dear Mr. Gibson:

The Kentucky Department for Environmental Protection (DEP) has issued the enclosed Notice of
Violation for violations discovered at your facility. Please review this Notice of Violation carefully.

Your cooperation and attention to this matter is appreciated. If you have any questions, please contact me
at (502) 564-2150 extension 266.

Sincerely,

Lori E. Conway

Environmental Enforcement Specialist
Compliance and Operations Branch
Division of Enforcement

Enclosure

y 7 IﬂiI/‘;‘\3



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
ENERGY and ENVIRONMENT CABINET
DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Division of Enforcement

NOTICE OF VIOLATION

To: ICG East KY LI.C
Attn: Don Gibson

1021 Tori Drive
Hazard, KY 41701

Al Name: ICG East KY LLC (898-7073) AILID: 14990 Activity ID: ENV20100001
County: Pike

KPDES Permit: KYG045176
DMRE Permit: 898-7073

Date(s) Violation(s) Observed: 12/02/2010
This is to advise that you are in violation of the provisions cited below:

1 Violation Description for Subject Item AI000000014990():
No person shall, directly or indirectly, throw, drain, run or otherwise discharge into any of the
waters of the Commonwealth, or cause, permit or suffer to be thrown, drained, run or otherwise
discharged into such waters any pollutant, or any substance that shall cause or contribute to the
pollution of the waters of the Commonwealth in contravention of the standards adopted by the
cabinet or in contravention of any of the rules, regulations, permits, or orders of the cabinet or in
contravention of any of the provisions of this chapter. [KRS 224.70-110]

Description of Non Compliance:

ICG East KY LLC violated 401 KAR 5:065, Section 2(1), which cites to 40 CFR 122.41(a), by
failing to submit Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs) for KPDES Coal General permit
#KYGO045176, for 1st, 2nd, 3rd, and 4th Quarters (January - December) of 2008; 1st, 2nd, 3rd and
4th Quarters (January - December) of 2009; and for 1st & 2nd Quarters (January - June) of 2010.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:
ICG East KY LLC shall comply with the terms and conditions of KPDES Coal General Permit
#KYG045176. [KRS 224.70]

Violations of the above cited statute(s) and/or regulation(s) are subject to a civil penalty per day per violation.
Violations carry civil penalties of up to $25,000 per day per violation depending on the statutes/regulations
violated. In addition, violations may be concurrently enjoined. Compliance with remedial measures and their



Al ICG East KY LLC (898-7073) -- 14990

deadlines does not provide exemption from liability for violations during the period of remediation, nor prevent
additional remedial measures from being required.
If you have questions or need further information, write or call the undersigned:

Department for Environmental Protection
Division of Enforcement
300 Fair Oaks Lane
Frankfort, KY 40601
502-564-2150 extension 266 (8:00 AM — 4:30 PM)
Ms. Lori Conway, Enforcement Specialist

A & by -

Issued By:
Ms. Lori E. Conway
Environmental Enforcement Specialist
Compliance and Operations Branch
Date: November 29, 2010

Issued By: y /“7

Mark J. Cleland, M.P.A., R E.H.S.
Environmental Control Manager
Compliance and Operations Branch
Date: November 29, 2010

How Delivered:
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LEONARD K. PETERS

STEVEN L. BESHEAR SECRETARY

GOVERNOR

ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENT CABINET
DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
DIVISION OF ENFORCEMENT
300 FAIR OAKS LANE
FRANKFORT KENTUCKY 40601
www.kentuckv.eov

November 29, 2010
Hand Delivered

Powell Mountain Energy LLC
Attn: Don Gibson

1021 Tori Drive

Hazard, KY 41701

Re: Notice of Violation
AlID: 102044
Al Name: Powell Mountain Energy LLC
Activity ID: ENV20100001
KPDES Permits: Multiple
DSMRE Permits: Multiple

Dear Mr. Gibson:

The Kentucky Department for Environmental Protection (DEP) has issued the enclosed Notice of
Violation for violations discovered at your facilities. Please review this Notice of Violation carefully.

Your cooperation and attention to this matter is appreciated. If you have any questions, please contact me
at (502) 564-2150 extension 266.

Sincerely,
A’ & oy

Lori E. Conway

Environmental Enforcement Specialist
Compliance and Operations Branch
Division of Enforcement

Enclosure

Kontriohbir



COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY
ENERGY and ENVIRONMENT CABINET
DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Division of Enforcement

NOTICE OF VIOLATION

To: Powell Mountain Energy LLC
Attn: Don Gibson

1021 Tori Drive

Hazard, KY 41701

AI Name: Powell Mountain Energy LLC (848-5475) ATID: 102044 - Multiple

Activity ID: ENV20100001

County: Multiple

KPDES Permits / DSMRE Permits:

KYG045535 (848-5475), KYG 042008 (848-5473), KYG041488 (848-5472), KYG041694 (848-5471),
KYG040167 (848-5470)

Date(s) Violation(s) Observed: 11/29/2010
This is to advise that you are in violation of the provisions cited below:

1 Violation Description for Subject Item AIO00000102044():
No person shall, directly or indirectly, throw, drain, run or otherwise discharge into any of the
waters of the Commonwealth, or cause, permit or suffer to be thrown, drained, run or otherwise
discharged into such waters any pollutant, or any substance that shall cause or contribute to the
pollution of the waters of the Commonwealth in contravention of the standards adopted by the
cabinet or in contravention of any of the rules, regulations, permits, or orders of the cabinet or in
contravention of any of the provisions of this chapter. [KRS 224.70-110]

Description of Non Compliance:

Powell Mountain Energy LLC violated 401 KAR 5:065, Section 2(1), which cites to 40 CFR
122.41(a), by failing to submit the required monitoring data for conductivity on the Discharge
Monitoring Reports (DMRs) for August 2009 and September 2009. Conductivity data was missing
for the following permits and outfalls:

KYG045535 (848-5475) Outfall 2
KYG042008 (848-5473) Outfalls 1 & 2
KYG041694 (848-5471) Outfalls 5,6 & 7
KYGO040167 (848-5470) Outfall 6

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:
Powell Mountain Energy LLC shall comply with the terms and conditions of their KPDES Permits.
[KRS 224.70-110]

2 Violation Description for Subject Item AIO00000102044():
No person shall, directly or indirectly, throw, drain, run or otherwise discharge into any of the
waters of the Commonwealth, or cause, permit or suffer to be thrown, drained, run or otherwise
discharged into such waters any pollutant, or any substance that shall cause or contribute to the
pollution of the waters of the Commonwealth in contravention of the standards adopted by the
cabinet or in contravention of any of the rules, regulations, permits, or orders of the cabinet or in
contravention of any of the provisions of this chapter. [KRS 224.70-110]



Al Powell Mountain Energy LLC (848-5475) -- 102044

Description of Non Compliance:

Powell Mountain Energy LLC violated 401 KAR 5:065, Section 2(1), which cites to 40 CFR
122.41(a), by failing to submit the required monitoring data for conductivity on the Discharge
Monitoring Reports (DMRs) for September, October, or November of 2009. Conductivity data
was missing for the following permits and outfalls:

KYG041694 (848-5471) Outfall 1 for November 2009
KYG040167 (848-5470) Outfall 3 for September and November of 2009.
KYG040167 (848-5470) Outfall 6 for October and November of 2009.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:
Powell Mountain Energy LLC shall comply with the terms and conditions of their KPDES Permits.

[KRS 224.70-110]

3 Violation Description for Subject Item AIOO0000102044():
No person shall, directly or indirectly, throw, drain, run or otherwise discharge into any of the
waters of the Commonwealth, or cause, permit or suffer to be thrown, drained, run or otherwise
discharged into such waters any pollutant, or any substance that shall cause or contribute to the
pollution of the waters of the Commonwealth in contravention of the standards adopted by the
cabinet or in contravention of any of the rules, regulations, permits, or orders of the cabinet or in
contravention of any of the provisions of this chapter. [KRS 224.70-110]

Description of Non Compliance:

Powell Mountain Energy LLC violated 401 KAR 5:065, Section 2(1), which cites to 40 CFR
122.41(a), by failing to submit all data as required for Monitoring and Reporting, as required by the
KPDES Coal General Permit. »

A total of two (2) samples shall be collected (if discharge occurs) each calendar month during a
period of discharge resulting from a precipitation or pumpage event for all active mining areas and
the requirement of Section B shall apply.

If only one (1) discharge occurs during the calendar month, then the permittee must provide
appropriate documentation.

Below are the specific violations found:

KYGO045535 (848-5475): Outfall 2: Only 1 sample was reported for August of 2009.
Appropriate documentation was not attached to the DMRs.

KYG041488 (848-5472): Outfall 5: Only 1 sample was reported for August of 2008.
Appropriate documentation was not attached to the DMRs.

KYGO041488 (848-5472): Outfall2: Only 1 sample was reported for January of 2009; and NO
samples reported for February and March of 2009. Appropriate documentation was not attached to
the DMRs.
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Al: Powell Mountain Energy LLC (848-5475) -- 102044

KYG041694 (848-5471): Outfall 1: Only 1 sample was reported for July 2008; and January and
June of 2009. NO samples were reported for September 2008; and February, March, April, May,
August, September, October and December of 2009.

KYG041694 (848-5471): Outfall 6: Only 1 sample was reported for August and September of
2008. NO samples were reported for June of 2009. Appropriate documentation was not attached
to the DMRs.

KYG041694 (848-5471): Outfall 7: Only 1 sample was reported for August and December of
2008; January and March of 2009. Appropriate documentation was not attached to the DMRs.

KYG040167 (848-5470): Outfall 12: Only 1 sample was reported for July and August of 2008.
NO samples were reported for September of 2009. Appropriate documentation was not attached.

KYG040167 (848-5470): Outfall 3: Only 1 sample was reported for September 2008; February
and April of 2009. NO samples were reported for August, October and November of 2008; August
and October of 2009. Appropriate documentation was not attached.

KYG040167 (848-5470): Outfall 7: Only 1 sample was reported for December of 2008; and
January, February and April of 2009. NO samples were reported for October and November of
2008; and for June of 2009. Appropriate documentation was not attached.

KYG040167 (848-5470): Outfall 2: Only 1 sample was reported for January, February, March,
April and May of 2009. NO samples were reported for June of 2009. Appropriate documentation
was not attached.

KYG040167 (848-5470): Outfall 6: Only 1 sample was reported for January, February, April,
and December of 2009. NO samples were reported for July of 2009. Appropriate documentation
was not attached.

The remedial measure(s), and date(s) to be completed by are as follows:
Powell Mountain Energy LLC shall comply with the terms and conditions of their KPDES Permits.
[KRS 224.70-110]

** NOTE ** Attached is a complete list of Powell Mountain permits that were reviewed.
Violations of the above cited statute(s) and/or regulation(s) are subject to a civil penalty per day per violation.

Violations carry civil penalties of up to $25,000 per day per violation depending on the statutes/regulations
violated. In addition, violations may be concurrently enjoined. Compliance with remedial measures and their
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deadlines does not provide exemption from liability for violations during the period of remediation, nor prevent

additional remedial measures from being required.
If you have questions or need further information, write or call the undersigned:

Department for Environmental Protection
Division of Enforcement
300 Fair Oaks Lane
Frankfort, KY 40601
502-564-2150 extension 266 (8:00 AM —4:30 PM)
Ms. Lori Conway, Enforcement Specialist

At & by

Issued By:
Ms. Lori E. Conway
Environmental Enforcement Specialist
Compliance and Operations Branch
Date: November 29, 2010

Issued By: /

Mark J. Cleland, M.P.A., RE.H.S.
Environmental Control Manager
Compliance and Operations Branch
Date: November 29, 2010

How Delivered: Hand Delivered
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11/23/2010
Powell Mountain Energy LLC
Permits Reviewed
DNR # Old or New KPDES # Al#
DNR #
* No DMRs

1 848-5457 unknown required
2 848-5470 KYG040167 15343
3 848-5471 KYG041694 15343
4 848-5472 KYG041488 102039
5 848-5473 KYG042008 14319
6 848-5474 KYG045436 102043 * Not on NOV
7 848-5475 KYG045535 102044
8 848-5476 old 848-5456 | KYG044246 102046 * Not on NOV
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